
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    

 

6:00 pm City Council Executive Session 
(Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d), Labor Negotiator Consultations 

 
6:30 pm City Council Work Session 

 
 7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(following the City Council Meeting) 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

  
 
6:00 PM CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
1. Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) 

Labor Negotiator Consultations 
 
 
6:30 PM CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
1. YSAT Update, (Youth Substance Abuse Team) 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. CONSENT 

 

A. Approval of April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2014-026 Reappointing Russell Griffin to the Sherwood Planning Commission 

C. Resolution 2014-027 Appointing Sally Robinson to the Sherwood Planning Commission 

D. Resolution 2014-028 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with Washington County regarding a Joint Industrial Site Readiness 

and Planning Grant benefiting Sherwood’s Tonquin Employment Area 

E. Resolution 2014-029 Authorizing the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of Agreement 

between the City of Sherwood and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

Employees (AFSCME) 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Boy Scout Recognition 

B. Recognition of Sherwood Mr. Bowmen Contest Winners 

C. Proclamation, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Week 

D. Metro Presentation, Southwest Corridor Update 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
May 6, 2014 

 
6:00 pm City Council Executive Session 

(ORS 192.660(2)(d), Labor Negotiator Consult) 

 
6:30 pm City Council Work Session  

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(following the City Council Mtg.) 

 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
May 6, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

A. Resolution 2014-030 Reducing Transportation System Development Charges (Julia Hajduk, 
Community Development Director) 
 
 

8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

10. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas 
are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available 
to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 
 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 18 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

April 15, 2014 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 6:11 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Krisanna 

Clark, Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer, Robyn Folsom and Dave Grant. 

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, Public Works 

Utility Manager Rich Sattler and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 

4. OTHERS PRESENT:  Tualatin Valley Water District, CEO Mark Knudson and Todd Heidgerken Water 

Supply Program Director. 

 

5. TOPICS: 

 

A. TVWD Presentation, Willamette Water Supply Program 

 

Mr. Knudson and Mr. Heidgerken presented information to the City Council (see record, Exhibit A) and 

explained the goal of the presentation. They recapped studies, history and milestones. Mr. Heidgerken 

spoke of coordination and implementation with the City of Sherwood and explained the preliminary 

design project and an opportunity with a transmission line to extend to SW 124th.  

 

Council discussion followed. Mr. Heidgerken explained Public affairs and outreach, coordination and 

implementation and discussion occurred regarding partnerships and agreements, target date of 2026 for 

project completion and future costs to citizens.  

 

6. ADJOURN: 

 

 Mayor Middleton adjourned the work session at 6:55 pm and convened to a regular Council meeting. 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 18 

3. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Krisanna 

Clark, Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer, Robyn Folsom and Dave Grant. 

 

4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom 

Pessemier, Police Captain Ty Hanlon, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Finance Director 

Julie Blums, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney 

Chris Crean. 

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the Consent Agenda. 

 

Prior to receiving a motion, the City Recorder informed of a scriveners error on page 1 of the April 1st, 

2014 City Council meeting minutes. She indicated an error in the meeting start time and an error in the 

Council members present. 

 

Councilor Clark indicated she had an amendment to page 13 of the draft minutes and the motion made 

by Councilor Folsom. She said she did not vote for this and spoke against it and said the vote should 

reflect 5:2 with her voting in opposition. Councilor Clark made the following motion. 

 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCILOR CLARK TO AMEND THE DRAFT MINUTES TO 

INDICATE A VOTE OF 5:2, WITH CLARK OPPOSED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR GRANT. 

MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

A. Approval of April 1, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2014-022 Appointing a Pro Tem Municipal Judge 

 

MOTION AS AMENDED: FROM COUNCILOR DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA 

AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT LINDA HENDERSON, MOTION PASSED 

7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Michael Buffington Sherwood resident came forward and referred to the proposed language to change 

the City Council rules and said it was vague leaving space for misinterpretation, regarding Section D.2 

where it states, “the Mayor in consultation with the Council President and City Manager shall prepare 

the agenda for City Council meetings” and asked what happens if that rule is broken.  

 

Mr. Buffington referred to the language of, “an amendment to a published City council meeting agenda 

must be approved by the Mayor, City Manager and Council President”, he asked what happens if this 

can’t be done, and if people are out of town, there is nothing in here that states what happens if those 

rules aren’t followed. He referred to the prior Council meeting and comments from Councilor Grant that 

the WCCC requires the Council to pass a resolution to appoint a liaison. He said the rules do not speak 

to this. 

 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 3 of 18 

Council Grant responded that was his understanding at the time and right after he said it he was 

corrected by the City Recorder that it was a letter. He said he was incorrect and it was a request by 

them but it is not in their bylaws and said the Council made the correction at the meeting. 

 

Daniel King Sherwood resident came forward and stated that he attended the meeting two weeks ago 

and what he saw displayed was not his expectation or are the expectations Sherwood citizens should 

have. He said he used to serve on the Council and in all his years as a public servant he has never 

come across a situation where people were attacking each other. He referred to the Council rules and 

asks what happens. He said the rules are on the agenda tonight and he has read through the rules 

many times. He commented regarding the situation with James Copfer on the Planning Commission and 

said whether you are happy or not with someone’s performance, never let it become personal and never 

express it publically in this forum or the newspaper. He said the process has broken down and said 

Councilor Grant focused on this at the prior meeting. He said he sees this Council has broken down and 

the process has shut down. He said in this forum or in the newspaper, you’re battling ideas and winning 

the hearts and minds of people with ideas, you don’t attack people in those forums. He said he is 

personally disappointed to see that there are people on this board who are attacking, whether it be a 

Planning Commission member, the YMCA or another Councilor. Mr. King provided an example of the 

Mayor’s comments at the prior Council meeting and his comments regarding Councilor Langer. He said 

the Mayor made an accusation and there was nothing to back it up, he never said or heard of anything 

that would implicate Councilor Langer in any wrong doing whatsoever. Mr. King stated Councilor Langer 

is a private developer and is out there to make money and there is nothing wrong with that. He said we 

live in America and this is what people do with their property, they develop it and he doesn’t see 

anything in the newspaper or elsewhere that Mr. Langer has done anything wrong. He said he is tired of 

the attacks and nothing happening and said it has happened at the Council meetings and in the 

newspapers and against organizations and said as a citizen of this community and a former member of 

this Council, he asked that the Council enforce their rules. Mr. King added and requested that the 

Council do a public reprimand of the Mayor.  

 

Mara Broadhurst Sherwood resident came forward and stated the public workshop at the last Planning 

Commission was a civic joy. She stated the round robin approach presented by staff to promote 

discussion of the various issues currently under plan stimulated discussion from a wide variety of voices 

and it was a great demonstration of democracy in action. She said the open and transparent access to 

the staff’s knowledge of the issues was an added luxury. She said in a mutually respectful atmosphere 

of creative problem solving the participation of the commissioners and Councilor Folsom connected the 

community with the benefit of their leadership and experience. She said it was a positive reaffirmation 

that those we have trusted to look out for Sherwood’s future have been doing a thorough and 

conscientious job. She said the conclusion of the meeting represented the collective perspective and 

gave us an opportunity to evaluate and assess Sherwood’s growing pains in a proactive approach 

mindful of our place in a broader picture. She said the respect given on our concerns and the value 

given on our thoughts will continue on the issues raised and work their way through the public process. 

Ms. Broadhurst thanked all those involved.  

 

Mayor Middleton referred to the Planning Commission workshop and said that is the second time they 

have done this and the workshops are great.  

 

Jan Hatcher Sherwood resident came forward and stated her brailing instructor Dan Arnold walked 

through the neighborhood with her and pointed out a few things. She said the bus stop at Gleneagle and 

Sherwood Blvd. is in the middle of an arborvitae bush. She said he suggested an audible signal for the 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 4 of 18 

light at the schools for the children, seniors and people with disabilities. She said it would be nice to 

have sidewalk repairs on Sherwood Blvd. She referred to the Senior Center and asked if there could be 

tactile domes installed on the curbs and said they need to repaint the safety yellow as it is a liability 

issue.  

 

Mayor Middleton asked if she was referring to the signal at the school by the Senior Center. She replied 

yes.  

 

Councilor Clark asked regarding ownership of the sidewalks on Sherwood Blvd, and if they are owned 

by the School District or the City. Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier said the sidewalks are most 

likely a City right away.  

 

City Manager Gall asked about the instructor Ms. Hatcher referred to. Jan responded that his name is 

Dan Arnold and he is an instructor with the Department of Services for the Blind. Mr. Gall said that staff 

would follow up on this.  

 

Mayor Middleton referred to a yield sign and if it was moved. She responded no but stated an audible 

signal would be better. 

 

With no other citizen comments, Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Resolution 2014-023 Transferring Budget Expenditure Appropriations between categories for 

budget year 2013-14  

 

Finance Director Julie Blums explained the resolution and said they are requesting two budget transfers, 

one for the Street Capital and one for the Telecommunications Fund. She said the Street Capital is to 

cover our costs for Adams Avenue North and the TSP Update. She said when we put the budget 

together last year we anticipated having the TSP Update completed before year end and we didn’t so 

this is a rollover from last year. She said with Adam’s Avenue when we put it together the 

announcement regarding the development had not come out so it was not in the budget yet. She said 

under Telecommunication there are two items, one is a redundancy project which was originally 

budgeted last year and not completed so we need to move the money into this fiscal year. She said the 

other is to upgrade and replace our core equipment to support new customers that will add 

approximately $100,000 of annual revenue to our telecommunication fund. Julie offered to answer 

Council questions. 

 

With no Council questions or comments, the following motion was received. 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2014-023, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR FOLSOM. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

B. Resolution 2014-024 Approving Amendments to City Council Rules Pertaining to Agenda 

Creation and Committee Appointments 

 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 5 of 18 

City Manager Gall explained the resolution and said these are proposed amendments based on the 

resolution adopted at the last meeting and at the direction of the Council. He stated he is not sure the 

language is exactly what the Council desires, but it is the decision of the Council. He commented on the 

agenda creation and said when Mayor Middleton first came on as the Mayor, he had the Council 

President participate on the agenda creation during the weekly meetings with himself, the City Recorder 

and the Assistant City Manager. He said this worked very well and believes the proposed language in 

the proposed rules tries to get back to that process. He said it is up to the Council as they are their rules. 

 

He said the other issue is regarding bringing back mayoral appointments and said when the Mayor 

makes appointments to both City Boards and Commissions and non-City Boards and Commissions, to 

have this brought back to the Council in a resolution for the Council to approve. He said part of this is to 

create a record which is important for some of these boards and commissions. He said this was the 

intent of the language and said the Mayor still has the responsibility to make those appointments and it’s 

just consent of the Council through a more formal resolution process. He said language was added to 

refer to both City and non-City Boards and Commissions. He said previous rules did not address non-

City. He stated City Attorney Chris Crean took the language suggested by staff and made it clearer and 

said the language is up for discussion. 

 

City Attorney Chris Crean stated he would like to respond to the public comments received about the 

Council rules being violated and he reiterated that these are not a constitution, a statute or an ordinance 

but are in the nature of a gentle person’s agreement and these are only enforceable to the extent the 

Council wants to enforce them. He noted that there are a number of the rules that are routinely not 

enforced for reasons that everyone agrees with. He provided the example and referred to Paragraph K 

that the rules state that a meeting has to have a motion and a second and approved to adjourn, he said 

we routinely adjourn because people want to go home. He said you don’t have to enforce rules when 

there is no need to even if they are being violated, he said these are guidelines the Council can follow or 

not follow and bend at their will. 

 

He referred to the second question about what happens and referred to the new language under Section 

D.2 regarding an amendment to a published City council meeting agenda and said they decided to leave 

the word published as we know that means put out to the public such as on the website and it is  

synonymous with published. He said once it is available to the public and changed, changes should be 

made with sufficient time to allow the public notice of the change, and asked what happens if that is not 

possible. He said at that point you defer to the language under 2.a. which allows a Council member to 

propose an amendment to the agenda by motion under “Approval of Agenda”. He said they added this 

category to the list of categories. He noted that if something comes up at the last minute and you want 

to add it to the agenda have someone move to add it to the agenda, get a second and have it approved. 

He said the last set of changes is to the appointment process to be appointed by the Mayor with the 

consent of the Council. 

  

Councilor Grant asked if it was a violation of Roberts Rules to put the Approval of Agenda category 

under consent or is it something they have to vote on every time. Mr. Crean said yes and referred to the 

lead in line to Section D.1 and noted that these are agenda headings and business has to fit into one of 

these headings. He said the order of the agenda can be rearranged.  

 

Councilor Butterfield commented on the current process of filling vacancies and asked how this would 

change it. Mr. Gall responded that the current process involves the commissions recommending a 

candidate to the Mayor and the Mayor decides whether to make the recommendation. He said the 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 6 of 18 

Mayor is now not part of the interview process but generally accepts the recommendations and it goes 

on the agenda as a resolution.  

 

Mayor Middleton said that now he takes the recommendations and the City Recorder drafts the 

resolution to go before the Council. He said he has always accepted the recommendations and said this 

process will not change.  

 

Mayor Middleton asked Mr. Crean about the agenda setting process and asked does the language need 

to state the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee can help set the agenda because that could 

hold up the process. Mr. Crean responded that it infers that the three of you have to decide amongst 

yourselves what the agenda will be. Mr. Gall said the practice is the Assistant City Manager is also part 

of the process and he can step in for the City Manager if needed and if he is out of town the Assistant 

City Manager will be designated to be the City Manager in his absence. He commented on how well it 

worked before when Mayor Middleton introduced the idea. Mayor Middleton noted that the City 

Recorder is also involved in the process and it will work well again. 

 

Councilor Clark clarified that under Section D. 2 it states that The Mayor, in consultation with the City 

Council President and City Manager and said that is a great idea but asked why the next sentence 

states the agenda must be approved and asked why are we having the City Manager approve the 

agenda when the agenda is here for the people and we represent the people and he is our support staff 

and agreed that it is appropriate for him to be part of the process for consultation but it is inappropriate 

for him to be part of the approval process for the public body. She stated that the agenda is for the 

people and the City Manager is staff. She asked how the Council felt. 

 

Councilor Grant asked if that meant the City Manager could decline the agenda.  

 

Mr. Gall and Mr. Crean agreed that it was not the intent and it is the Council’s agenda. The following 

motion was received. 

 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCILOR CLARK TO AMEND THE SECTION UNDER AGENDA 

D.2 TO REMOVE AND CITY MANAGER AND REPLACE IT WITH APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR GRANT. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

MOTION AS AMENDED: FROM COUNCILOR GRANT TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2014-024 AS 

AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR FOLSOM. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED 

IN FAVOR.  

 

Mayor Middleton encouraged the Council if they have agenda items they want added to the agenda the 

sooner they get them in the better in case they need clarification.  

 

Mr. Gall reminded the Council the agenda forecast is always included in his weekly updates and that is 

a good time to review that and make suggestions. He said the constant communication with the whole 

Council is important. 

 

Councilor Folsom noted that the agenda forecast is many weeks out and communication is important. 

 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 7 of 18 

Council President Henderson reminded Council that if they feel strongly about something they need to 

let Mr. Gall know and he can put it on the agenda forecast and then staff will have time to prepare. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

C. Resolution 2014-025 Appointing Primary and Alternate Representatives to Washington 

County Coordinating Committee  

 

Mr. Gall reminded the Council that this was in response to a motion that was made at the last meeting 

for a point of clarity for the record. He said the Mayor will continue to be the WCCC representative and 

the WCCC is the Washington County Coordinating Committee which is made up mostly of Mayors, but 

not all Mayors can attend all meetings and because there are votes that take place having an alternate 

and a second alternate is important. He said the intent was to do this formally and determine who the 

alternates are and if there will be one or two alternates.  

 

Mayor Middleton stated he has no problem with one or two alternates. He referred to a situation when 

the Mayor and Council President Henderson were both unavailable and said adding a third would not 

hurt. He noted that you can only vote if you have been appointed. 

 

Councilor Folsom clarified that the documentation we already have states that Mayor Middleton is the 

primary, Council President Henderson is the alternate and Councilor Clark is the second alternate and 

this resolution is just affirming that. She referred to an email she received that states the committee 

requested that we do this by resolution. 

 

Mr. Gall stated that they want to know that the Council is approving whomever is representing the 

Council but they did not say by resolution but in terms of clarity and for the record it does hurt to do a 

resolution reaffirming what was done before. He said it is an important board that Sherwood needs to be 

represented and there are important votes.  

 

Mayor Middleton noted that he has only missed one meeting and stated that Community Development 

Director Julia Hajduk also attends the meeting but cannot vote. 

 

Councilor Folsom asked if the resolution needs to be amended to fill in the blanks before approval. 

 

Mr. Crean stated that the resolution needs to be amended to add names. 

 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCILOR FOLSOM TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2014-025 TO MAKE 

MAYOR MIDDLETON THE PRIMARY, COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON THE FIRST 

ALTERNATE AND COUNCILOR CLARK THE SECOND ALTERNATE, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 

GRANT. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

MOTION AS AMENDED: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 

2014-025 AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR CLARK. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 8 of 18 

D. Ordinance 2014-009 Approving the Addition of Chapter 12.13, Rules of Conduct on City 

Property to Sherwood Municipal Code  

 

Mr. Gall introduced the topic and said the City Attorney’s office was critical in putting this together and 

may answer some questions as well as Captain Hanlon. He reminded the Council that they discussed 

this in a work session with Dave Nelson from CIS and they made a presentation for the need for an 

additional tool when on the rare occasion, when someone is beyond a level of behavior that is 

threatening and abusive to staff. He said many jurisdictions have this tool and said we used City of 

Tigard as a model. He commented that with this code of conduct if someone is beyond control they will 

be warned and could be excluded from the property ranging anywhere from 24 hours to a longer period 

of time. He said this is a proposed ordinance to adopt additional measures where on these rare 

occurrences they can make those decisions. He stated this does not happen very often but it has 

happened and referred to the tension in the community over the last year and a half over issues and 

there have been time when people have been threatening and abusive to staff and his job is to make 

sure we do not have a hostile work environment and referred to civility and said this is an attempt to 

address that. He said if he had the capability on the rare occurrence it would be nice to utilize it. He 

commented on the process of appeals and said if someone felt they were removed from City property in 

a wrongful manner they have the right to appeal to the courts. He noted that it is an ordinance and they 

do not have to adopt it tonight. He asked if Mr. Crean had anything to offer. 

 

Mr. Crean said he agreed with Mr. Gall and said he is familiar with only one instance in 7 or 8 years 

where they had to take the step of excluding someone. He stated he works with a number of 

jurisdictions noted that there have been problems in libraries and at planning counters and public works 

departments and there needs to be something in place. He noted that Chief Groth previously stated that 

what they do now with someone is warn them to stop or they will have to get serious and usually that 

works. He said if it doesn’t then they issue an exclusion order and it would typically be for 30 days.  

 

Mr. Gall clarified that we have an existing exclusion policy for the library because we have had situations 

that we have had to address. 

 

Mr. Crean added that the notion of a warning is written into the ordinance under Section 090 

Enforcement and Exclusion under paragraph G it states “before issuing an exclusion order the police 

officer or authorized employee shall first give the person a warning and reasonable opportunity to desist” 

and said it is written right into the rules. 

 

Mayor Middleton asked about the exclusion policy for the library. 

 

Mr. Gall said it is an internal policy and has never been adopted as an ordinance and it is similar in 

sense but doesn’t go as far as defining an appeal process. He said if the Council would like to see it he 

can bring it back at another meeting.  

 

Councilor Henderson said she thought the library exclusion policy was a warning and then they are 

excluded for 30 days and if they return within the 30 days they can be cited for trespassing and said 

they have used it twice that she recalls.  

 

Councilor Folsom asked if we got this from a neighboring community.  

 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 9 of 18 

Mr. Gall said yes this is based on the City of Tigard’s ordinance that they adopted in 2008. He 

commented on civility and said that this is a problem nationwide and we are not unusual in considering 

this. He said there are a lot of exclusion policies and Captain Hanlon has experience with City of 

Beaverton’s policy. He stated they don’t get used too often but as Chief Groth said it would be nice to 

have that extra tool. He said he looks at it from a safety standpoint for his employees. He commented 

that it has been a tough year for some of the employees dealing with frustrated residents and he 

understands the frustration but it has gone beyond that level. He said he does not believe that just 

because you are a public employee that you can get abused verbally because of some issue.   

 

Mayor Middleton commented that he sees a lot of duplication and that we already have laws on the 

books so we are adding to the code and referred to littering and fraud. He said he would like to see it 

trimmed down and remove the duplications and make it a more streamlined policy. He said something 

smaller would be easier to enforce and could still meet the needs which is mainly in City Hall and Parks. 

He asked if some of the things were considered infractions or misdemeanors. Mr. Crean responded 

violations.  

 

Council President Henderson referred to Section 12.13.090 and asked Mr. Crean is there was a reason 

why they listed those chapters, which is page 4 and 5. Mr. Crean said the primary reason is to put 

people on notice that those activities too may also be grounds for exclusion. He stated that beyond the 

public notice element it says those activities that fall with any of those categories can be enforced by a 

police officer, which the Mayor is correct and that is existing law, or authorized employee. He 

commented that if any of this is going on at Public Works, Director Craig Shelton could have them 

removed. He said it extends the persons authorized and enforces violations and puts the reader on 

notice. He stated the Mayor is right to the extent that those are already prohibited and stated that if 

Craig called Captain Hanlon they could have the person excluded, but this extends that authority to 

authorized person as well. 

 

Mayor Middleton stated that he would rather have our police enforcing that. Mr. Crean added by bringing 

these under the umbrella of conduct you don’t have to issue a citation for violation, you could just 

exclude the person for these activities listed, offenses against state and public justice, fraud deception, 

offences against public health, controlled substances, and stated that you could issue an exclusion 

order now because they are in this chapter. He stated that now if you call a police officer for one of 

these violations the only option now is to issue a violation or citation. 

 

Mayor Middleton said in some instances like paraphernalia he would like to see citations and he would 

like the major violations to be removed from this language.  

 

Councilor Grant asked for a point of order and asked if we needed to have a public hearing. City 

Recorder responded that it is not required.  

 

Councilor Clark referred to page 74 of the packet under Prohibited Acts Generally and read “declared to 

be an offense against the public peace, safety, health, morals” and said morals is pretty subjective. She 

commented on the language general welfare and said she agrees that the others are standard 

statements but morals are subjective.  

 

Councilor Grant asked if that is what foul language would be under. 

 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 10 of 18 

Mr. Gall said that is language directly from Tigard. Mr. Crean stated that he did not think the word 

“morals” was any more subjective than the words “general welfare” or “public peace” but agreed that it is 

a lightning rod. He said there is nothing in this that prohibits someone from using foul language, but 

doing it at the top of your voice or doing it so that it puts someone in fear for their personal safety so it is 

not the content but the matter of expression that would put someone within the code of conduct. He said 

you could take the word morals out without diminishing the importance of the clause. Mr. Crean said this 

is a clear statement that the City is exercising its police power.  

 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCILOR CLARK TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2014-009 TO REMOVE 

MORALS FROM SECTION 12.13.040 A.   

 

A second was not received, motion died. 

 

Councilor Butterfield agreed with Mayor Middleton and said we need to send it back and make the 

adjustments that Councilor Clark is referring to then bring it back to Council.  

 

Mayor Middleton suggested that Council go through and mark up what they don’t like and then we could 

bring it back. He said the policy is good.    

  

Mr. Gall reminded Council that there is no pride of authorship as this is from Tigard and we can alter it to 

make it our own.  

 

Councilor Grant clarified that if someone is at the desk upstairs and their language gets course in a way 

that is offensive but not loud, do we need the word morals in there in order to stop that or does that 

member of staff have to put up with that. Mr. Crean said he drafted that because it does have freedom 

of expression concerns and said the City does not have a government interest in regulating speech. He 

said the City does have public interest in protecting public health and safety and ensuring the efficient 

operation of governmental services and disruptive behavior cannot interfere with the provision of 

services. He said the recitals in the resolution try to hit both of those points. He referred to the example 

and said if a person upstairs starts engaging in language that puts the person in genuine fear of 

personal safety then the person could be removed because we have an obligation to protect the health 

and safety of the employees. He said secondly if it interferes with the efficient operation of government 

services we can also act to remove that problem and said he is familiar with examples of having done 

that. He said the behavior would have to trip one of those thresholds, it is not enough to use bad 

language.  

 

Council President Henderson referred to page 4 and read “engage in conduct that subjects or may 

subject customers or employees of the city government to annoyance or alarm including but not limited 

to conduct that involves the use of abusive or threatening language or gestures”. She commented on a 

situations where calling a police officer is not practice and would take too long and said it is important to 

leave the language of threatening and abusive for such cases. 

 

Mayor Middleton reminded Council that the exclusions could only be made by the City Manager and 

authorized personnel.  

 

Council Clark agreed with Mayor Middleton and Councilor Grant that it needs to be reworked. 

 

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 11 of 18 

Mayor Middleton noted that when they look at this again they can have public comments and said it is 

on line and if citizens have any questions they can deal with those.  

 

Mr. Crean reiterated the Mayors suggestion and asked Council to provide feedback. 

 

Captain Hanlon asked Mr. Crean that if we remove duplication of our City and State laws or ordinances 

and referred to a scenario where law enforcement has to respond and someone is smoking marijuana 

on City property and we enforce that on the criminal side. He asked if we don’t have some of this 

language, are we not going to be able to exclude them. He said in his opinion if they find someone 

committing a crime on City property they would like to have the option to exclude them. He asked for 

clarification. 

 

Mr. Crean said he did not know and it would come down to the penalties section of those chapters in the 

municipal code as to what penalties are authorized and he suspects exclusion is not one of them. He 

said it is a fine. He said he would look but his guess is because it is categorized a violation it is just a 

fine and unless the City has a policy like the one that exists for the library there is no other authority to 

exclude someone.  

 

Captain Hanlon said that is his concern if they take all that language out of there. He gave the example 

of issuing MIPs and suggested Snyder Park and said they would also want to send the message as well 

that we want you excluded. Mr. Crean asked Captain Hanlon to mark up the legislation as well and 

provide it to the City Manager and they will be sure to address that in the next iteration of this.   

 

Mayor Middleton asked if Portland had problems in court with their exclusion policy. Mr. Crean said yes, 

several times because of the length of the exclusions and the appeals process but overtime with the 

assistance of the courts they were able to identify the short coming and make adjustments and they now 

have an exclusion ordinance much like this one.  

 

Mayor Middleton asked if we could let the judge have the authority to exclude. Mr. Crean said ultimately 

the judge does have the authority to exclude if the person disagrees with the initial exclusion and 

appeals it. Mayor Middleton asked if the judge could issue an exclusion. Mr. Crean responded no and 

stated enforcement is a different branch of government. Mayor Middleton asked if he could make that a 

condition of the citation.  

 

Captain Hanlon referred to his previous example of MIPs and clarified that the Mayor was asking if the 

person with an MIP violation goes before the judge can the judge make exclusion part of the condition. 

Mayor Middleton said yes and they do that on certain things much like your driver’s license and he 

would rather have the judge as the authority and commented on the possibility of appeals and staff time 

and said it would just be easier if the judge could exclude.  

 

Finance Director Julie Blums stated that not all violations come before our judge. Mayor Middleton said 

he was referring to the ones listed here such as the drug cases.  

 

Mr. Crean said it is speculative to determine how people will respond to whether they were excluded 

versus given a fine.  He asked if people would object more to being given a fine. He said that will play 

itself out on a case by case basis. Mr. Gall said that they would look into it for the Mayor.  

 

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 12 of 18 

Council President Henderson said the penalty is listed as a class B and asked Julie Blums do they come 

before our municipal court. Julie said yes. Councilor Henderson stated that under 9.16 of the code it 

says a Class B is a penalty with a fine up to $500. She said a Class A is a $1,000, and Class B is $500 

and Class C is $250 and a Class D is $100. She said the court has discretion to waive or reduce fines. 

 

Mayor Middleton asked if Council agreed to have the ordinance reviewed and sent back to staff for 

changes. No objections were received. Mr. Gall said he would probably bring this back the first meeting 

in June.   

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENT 

 

Councilor Clark expressed her condolences to the Ross family and said that Carolyn Ross passed away 

on April 1, 2014 and she was a past Rotary President and a wonderful member of the community. She 

said she had the pleasure of working with her at the last Faith in Action.  

 

Councilor Clark announced the next Sherwood Faith in Action Good Samaritan Saturday is May 3rd and 

said Mark Federspiel with Providence is in charge. She said it is a program that lets the elderly remain in 

their home by helping them with yard work. She said you can sign up at the Senior Center and join a 

team and it starts at 8 am with breakfast and ends at noon. She stated the Arbor Day event was great 

and she thanked Scout Pack 844 and AKS Engineering for sponsoring the event.  

 

Councilor Clark announced that she attended a meeting at Tualatin High School about marijuana and 

our youth. She said it was a great program and she learned a lot and said Tualatin has started a 

coalition called Tualatin Together and they have mentored it after a program called Tigard Turns the 

Tides. She said she spoke with Mayor Ogden about the program and said it seemed very organized and 

she asked him how they fashioned the program so that the schools, the city and the community have 

bought into it and said the students are getting the information they need to those make good choices. 

She stated the statistics are terrible and provided a few stats. She commented that Mayor Ogden said 

they mentored on the Tigard program and he stated regarding funding, that because they got the buy in 

there is federal grant money available for these programs. She noted she has information available for 

the public and said as a society, a Council and as a City we should act on this quicker rather than 

slower. She stated that with the support of Council she would like to make a motion to direct staff to 

write a resolution to start a coalition mentoring off of the Tigard program, Tigard Turns the Tide and go 

after that federal money and look into the opportunity of that. She said she took the information to the 

Chamber and a representative from the schools and the YMCA both said they were interested in this. 

She said we need as a Council to have a place where we start. 

 

Councilor Langer stated that they started this about two years ago with the Youth Substance Abuse 

Task Force formed by the Chief of Police and it involves the police, the school district, Washington 

County Juvenile Department, the City of Sherwood and the YMCA. He stated the staff at the schools 

and the Washington County Juvenile Department have already done the majority of the heavy lifting. He 

said they have been modeling it after Tigard Turn the Tide. He noted they have 18 to 24 months of work 

done already. 

 

Councilor Clark asked if they have gone after the federal funding. Councilor Langer said that is part of 

the process and there is a team of about 25 that have been working on that. 

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 13 of 18 

 

Councilor Clark asked if the City could get involved in that. Councilor Langer said that we already are. 

She said she understands that police are involved but asked if we as a City could get involved. 

Councilor Langer said we already are. 

 

Councilor Folsom said it was her understanding that we are already doing this.  

 

Mr. Gall suggested to Councilor Clark that when Chief Groth returns he can give us an update of YSAT 

and where the coalition fits in. He said that when he first heard about this and was getting involved with 

YSAT he got very energized as well and was wondering about the Tigard program and noted that they 

have had tremendous success. He said he has heard that you can’t get there instantly, you have to build 

the coalition.   

 

Councilor Langer stated last summer when they were working on it they tried to launch the whole 

program including the coalition before the school year but said the principals of the schools and mainly 

the staff working with the county couldn’t get the entire framework done. He said they got most of it done 

by late fall and said there have been several months of time where they are finalizing the framework and 

the systems. He said they have to get back on track to determine when they would launch it. He referred 

to the amount of work and said the earliest they could probably launch it would be this next coming 

school year which would be September 2014. He said they were meeting a couple times a month for a 

year and he understands the County has been involved working with representatives from Tigard for 

months. He stated there has been a lot of progress and by this fall they will have had 2 ½ years of work 

into it. 

 

Mr. Gall said that part of that may be an application process to the federal government but said it may 

be the school district that would take the lead potentially on that. He said that he thought that was the 

case in Tigard. 

 

Councilor Clark said according to Mayor Ogden, it was the city who took the lead in Tualatin.  

 

Mr. Gall said he would bring an update and he understands her excitement because he felt the same 

way. He said modeling after the success of Tigard is the way to go and they are a national model and it 

is an amazing program.  

 

Councilor Langer said everyone saw that in the Tigard program and said there are two main 

components and now if a child is caught with drugs at school they are expelled and everyone involved 

agrees that probably doesn’t help the child get off drugs so we need to build this YSAT as a different 

avenue for the student to be able to stay in the school and have different monitoring requirements and 

said that is where a lot of the work is being done. He said the fundamental thing that started this task 

force was that now, if the police caught a child using drugs off campus they could not tell the school and 

vice versa that if the school catches a child on campus with drugs they cannot tell the police. He said 

there is a legal boundary there for communication and said in this whole system there has been a lot of 

lawyer time trying to see how the management agreements between the entities work so that we can 

cross communicate and share information and data and it is global system. He said that is the two main 

goals that they have been trying to achieve of the past few years. He stated that it sounds like it is in the 

hands of the County and the school staff now. 

 

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 14 of 18 

Mr. Gall stated that it is time for an update directly from the Chief and other members of the committee 

and asked them what the next step to get to a coalition is. 

 

Councilor Clark said she remembered hearing about it two years ago and it sounds like work has been 

done and she is wondering if it would be helpful to have a resolution that says we as a Council support 

this, we support working towards a coalition getting the federal funding moving and said that she would 

ask the Chief. 

 

Mayor Middleton suggested a work session that would be open to the public. 

 

Councilor Langer added that it is an enormous topic and they thought they could launch it last fall. 

 

Mr. Gall commented on the efforts at the state level potentially in the fall regarding marijuana use and 

noted that the world is changing. He stated that we have a problem in the community now and it is 

probably only going to get worse.  

 

Councilor Clark said it is great that we are talking about this and it can’t hurt to get an update so we can 

get that federal funding and move forward. 

 

Councilor Clark referred to a program by Sherwood Main Street that gives the mapping for old town and 

lists all of the businesses and said they could use funding for this as they are a self-funded organization 

and if you would like to make a donation please contact Sherwood Main Street. She said they are also 

sponsoring a walking tour on April 24 where the Red Hat Ladies are coming in from McMinnville and 

they will tour the downtown area. She said they are going to have a Friday Night Lights where they are 

going to meet at Cannery Row and all go to the football games and have a group that returns to the old 

town area.  

 

Councilor Clark reported she went to the Water Wastewater Committee for the League of Oregon Cities 

and said she has a large amount of information and has provided it to the public in the back of the room 

and asked Mr. Gall to put a link on the City website.        

 

Councilor Langer announced that Representative John Davis is hosting a complimentary legislative 

update April 22nd at 7:30 am at the Sherwood Police Station. He said Les Schwab Tires Cruisin’ 

Sherwood is set for June 14th in old town Sherwood. He said the Chamber of Commerce is accepting 

nomination on its website for the Best in Sherwood Awards. He announced that Sweet Story achieved 

their goals and are moving to their new location. He said there will be a new wine bar called 503 

Uncorked that is planning to open in Sherwood. He stated the YMCA has Breakfast with the Bunny on 

Saturday April 19th and the National Initiative of Healthy Kids Day is April 26th at 10:00 am to 12:30 pm. 

He said the survey results are in from membership and staff satisfaction surveys and results will be 

shared soon. He noted the YMCA will be closed on Easter Sunday. He said National Senior Health Day 

is May 28th.  

 

Councilor Langer referred to citizen comments from the last meeting and said Terrie Emmons deserves 

an apology from Mayor Middleton. He said when she testified the Mayor repeatedly asked her if she was 

a citizen of the City of Sherwood and he referred to the form and it does not ask if you are a citizen but 

just need to state your name. He noted that they changed the requirement last year that you don’t have 

to say your address anymore. He said in the minutes when Terrie Emmons came forward she was 

asked if she was a citizen and she gave her zip code and he said that treatment of citizens is 

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 15 of 18 

intimidating and decreases the amount of public involvement we get at meeting and he acknowledged 

that and apologized and said it is no secret that she is the wife of the Board Chair of the YMCA and 

there is no secret as to why she was targeted in the fashion that she was. He said if no other apologies 

were going to be extended he gave her his apology.  

 

Councilor Langer referred to the April Gazette and said the Mayor led by example by stating that 

Sherwood needs to focus on doing the best for most and quit trying to divide the City. He said he has 

sat quietly and taken a lot of attacks and had a lot of stones thrown at him but when they start getting 

thrown from up here that is just about enough. He said the citizens need to know that everybody is not 

just going to sit quietly and put up with that sort of behavior. He commented on the stone that was 

thrown at him by the Mayor at the last meeting and said according to the minutes and read, “he believes 

what has divided that City was Walmart and the biggest problem with that is we have people on here 

that are still pushing that agenda and they need to move forward and take care of the people of 

Sherwood not their own personal money making agendas”. He said it is no secret that was clearly 

targeted directed at him and it was an unprofessional cheap shot with no good intent to serve our 

people. He stated he wanted the constituents to know that sort of behavior is not accepted or condoned 

and it is not going to go silently anymore.  

 

Councilor Langer referred to the minutes under Council Announcement and read from Councilor Clark’s 

announcement, “She believes that Councilor Langer did this is the last article when he brought her 

name out in an article about something the Mayor had brought up and she had never sent an email 

about or never had a discussion with him about and said she is not sure why her name appeared. She 

said Councilor Langer continued to state she had an agenda and asked how he would know what kind 

of agenda she has and what that would be. She said the only agenda she has is serving the citizens of 

Sherwood, and the rest of the Council did not agree with that”. He referred to the article in Oregon Live 

and said it followed shortly after the Chamber liaison situation of which never was discussed openly up 

here and he kept most of the fine details quiet so as not to spread more drama because that is not in his 

nature and it is difficult for him to do. He said at this point when his credibility becomes attacked, and 

referred to the Oregon Live article, and said his wording is very ambiguous and general. He gave an 

example of why he commented on creating awkward situations and doing stuff that doesn’t make sense 

and he read a message from the Council Liaison Clark to the Chamber which reads, “Please notify me 

of when your photographer for Board members is available and I will make it a priority to have my 

photograph taken. When my photo is posted on your website I will be pleased to join your Board at the 

regularly scheduled meetings as my schedule allows”. He said that didn’t go over real well and that is 

just the tip of the iceberg. He said there was other stuff going on and that is what he said to the 

Oregonian. He said that sort of stuff needs to stop and not go on anymore. He said for the constituents 

who are afraid to come to the meetings for the berating that goes on he said you are not alone and said 

there are some of us who will stand and defend you.  He apologized again to the Emmons family for the 

treatment they had to succumb to last summer when Mr. Emmons was berated and again at the last 

meeting when Mrs. Emmons was berated. He said if there are questions about specific details he would 

be happy to share them but he won’t sit in silence anymore and let the hypocrisy flow over the dais. 

 

Councilor Grant said he was also embarrassed for Terrie Emmons and said the badgering was 

unnecessary and we often have people speak that don’t live in the City of Sherwood and it does not 

have to be a negative thing made out of it and said it was embarrassing and uncomfortable for her. He 

said others may not be excited about coming forward with the risk of that happening to them. 

 

17



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 16 of 18 

Councilor Butterfield reported that the Parks and Recreation Board met last week and toured several 

sites for a dog park and they unanimously came up with a decision to submit Snyder Park as the place 

for the City to take a look at. He said the City is working diligently at the feasibility of having a dog park 

up in that area. He said he met with the School District as the liaison and updated them on the lighting 

projects at Edy Ridge and the Middle School.  He said they had side conversations regarding how long it 

would take and would it be ready for football season and he said the City is working diligently to make 

sure this happens.  

 

Mayor Middleton asked which one is going first. Councilor Butterfield said it is all going at the same time. 

He said in a week they are planning to have the installation done and it will take a couple of months to 

get out an RFP. Mr. Gall said it is going through the Planning Commission process now.  

 

Councilor Folsom echoed the comments made by Mara Broadhurst about the Planning Commission 

work session and said it was a great piece to understanding the planning process. She said since she is 

new to the Planning Commission she appreciated the individual conversations and the access to staff 

and also the access to the citizens and their varied concerns. She thanked the Planning Commissioners 

and noted that Michael Cary is leaving the Planning Commission as his term has expired and publicly 

thanked him for his service. She asked Mr. Gall if there is a joint work session with the Planning 

Commission scheduled in the future. Mr. Gall replied not in the near future. She commented that the 

Planning Commission has requested that Council prioritize what our concerns were as there is a lull in 

their planning process as the projects move on to the development stage and they would like to tackle 

and finish the code cleanup and it would be beneficial for them to hear the Council priorities.  

 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk reminded Council that they have been working on code 

cleanup for a few years and discussed the process they have been through and they developed a work 

plan and got through 3 or 4 phases of the project, noting that due to circumstances with a decrease in 

staff and an increase in workload the code cleanup got pushed to the side and they are hoping to start 

that again and they would like to know the top priorities for the Council and the community.   

 

Councilor Folsom commented on the Sherwood High School achievements and the programs they offer. 

She stated that they will be holding their 2nd musical in 19 years on April 24, 25, 26 and May 1, 2, and 3. 

She said this is the first musical in memory with a live orchestra and a cast of 50 to perform Fiddler on 

the Roof. She said it is a wonderful show and a great opportunity to learn about culture and history. She 

said she is proud of the High School and the District for rebuilding that tradition that had been lost for 

nearly two decades. 

 

Council President Henderson reported that she attended the WCCC meeting and the Westside Corridor 

Study Meeting and said additional information on the study can be found on Metro’s website. She said 

the most important topic for Sherwood is the impact that the study plan could have because of the vote 

in Tigard. She noted that Tigard basically amended their Charter to disallow mass transit high capacity 

transit through Tigard without a public vote. She said she doesn’t think it will be coming to Sherwood. 

She said at the WCCC meeting one thing that has been a service to us is the ITS Program which is an 

Intelligent Transportation Signal Management Project that for us begins on Tualatin Sherwood Road and 

currently is live from Teton to 1-5 and someday they would like to bring it from Teton to Hwy 99 and that 

will require quite a bit a funding. She said it has resulted in an 18% increase in traffic movement. She 

said the other topic is concerning an organization called T for America which is a national organization 

that is attempting to consolidate throughout the nation to convince the federal government to take the 

transportation dollars and give them to the local jurisdictions to plan transportation improvement for their 

18



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 17 of 18 

own areas. She said the WCCC is looking to join as a group all the cities together and that is important 

because the Highway Trust Fund, which is the federal money that has probably done a large majority of 

projects in Sherwood, is forecasted to be broke by August 2014.  

 

Councilor Henderson reported that Sherwood will be hosting the Community Development Block Grant 

meeting next month in the Community Room on May 8th. She explained that the CDBG program is a 

federally funded program that is administered by Washington County and we have received a number of 

grants, about 2.5 million, since its inception and that money has contributed to significant improvements 

at our Senior Center. She said the public is invited.  

 

Councilor Henderson said on May 3rd the City will be coordinating and assisting in an event at Veteran’s 

Park at 2:00 pm, along with a group of citizen and family members of former Police Chief Stan 

Stanslowski (Sp?). She said he was our Police Chief from 1965-1981 and he passed away some years 

ago but his three sons, Bob, Calvin and Scott have wanted to do something. She stated the family is 

putting a bench with a plague in Veteran’s Park to commemorate his service. She commented that the 

2nd week in May is National Police Recognition Week. She said through this process they have decided 

we need a formal policy for the future for the placement of such items throughout the City. She said the 

current policy was written in the 1990s. She thanked Councilor Butterfield for entertaining the request 

and the Parks Board for approving the request.  

 

Councilor Henderson recognized Pam North, Library Manager and said that she will be retiring in June 

and said she has been with the Sherwood Library for 17 years and reiterated the Mayor’s comments 

that we have an amazing library and library staff. She said she is grateful for Pam’s service.  

 

Mayor Middleton reminded Councilor Henderson to comment on the Easter Egg Hunt. She commented 

that she, Councilor Clark and Mayor Middleton attended the Easter Egg Hunt and the event raised over 

$9,200 just that day for Brianna Dannen and her family. She said it was a great venue and there were 

many generous donations. She commented that it is a great tribute for our community and the McCabe’s 

are the reason for that. She said she is looking forward to future egg hunts and she congratulated the 

Hunt for Hope committee and the McCabe’s for continuing to volunteer selflessly in our community.  

 

Mayor Middleton announced that the former King City Chief of Police Tom Crowley (Sp?) passed away 

2 days ago. He commented on his service. He thanked Councilor Folsom and Councilor Henderson for 

meeting with him after last week’s Council meeting and commented that things are going to work better 

and stay on course and just do Council business for the citizens and we are no longer going to air our 

differences. He apologized for his behavior at the last meeting.  

  

9. CITY MANAGER AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

Mr. Gall announced that on May 15th in the Community Room there will be a meeting that DEQ is 

organizing and sponsoring about the former Ken Foster farm site, which is 40 acres off Murdock Road. 

He said the DEQ has performed some studies on the site and will hold a public informational meeting to 

review the report and risk assessment from 6:30 pm to 8:30 pm. He said it will be on the website and in 

the Archer.  

 

Mr. Gall reported that ballots will be mailed out in May to Sherwood residents with the 5 Charter 

Amendments and TVFR levy and the election date is May 20th.  

 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
April 15, 2014 
Page 18 of 18 

Mr. Gall reported that it is budget time and he will be releasing the City Manager’s recommended budget 

on May 2nd and the first Budget Meeting will be May 14th at 6:00 pm in the Community Room. He said  

there will be a Saturday morning public hearing on May 17th at 9:00 am. He said they are hoping to get 

more public participation on a Saturday morning rather than a week night. He announced Trashpalooza 

will be on April 26th and said it is a SOLV event and is from 10:00 am to noon at Cannery Square and 

the information is on the City website and in the Archer and signs around town.  

 

With no other business, the following motion was received. 

  

10. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADJOURN, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILOR FOLSOM. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton adjourned the meeting at 8:50 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

              

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 

 

 

20



 

Resolution 2014-026 Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1  

City Council Meeting Date: May 6, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2014-026 Reappointing Russell Griffin to the Sherwood 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Issue:  

Should the Council reappoint Russell Griffin to the Sherwood Planning Commission? 

 

Background:  

Russell Griffin, whose 4 year term expired in April 2014, has requested to be re-

appointed to the Planning Commission.  The review team of Jean Simson, Planning 

Commission Chair; Councilor Robyn Folsom, Council Liaison to the Commission; and 

Bill Middleton, Mayor all recommend Planning Commissioner Griffin for reappointment.  

 

Financials:  

There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-026 reappointing 

Russell Griffin to a four year term on the Sherwood Planning Commission. 

 

21



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-026 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-026 
 

REAPPOINTING RUSSELL GRIFFIN TO THE SHERWOOD  
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, Russell Griffin’s term expired in April 2014 which creates a vacancy; and 

 

WHEREAS, Russell Griffin has requested reappointment for another four-year term; and 

 

WHEREAS, Russell Griffin has served on the Planning Commission since 2010; and  

 

WHEREAS, Mayor Bill Middleton, Robyn Folsom, City Council Liaison to the Planning 

Commission, and Jean Simson, Planning Commission Chair have considered his request and 

recommend Commissioner Russell Griffin’s reappointment to a four-year term. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.   The Sherwood City Council hereby reappoints Russell Griffin to a four-year term 

expiring at the end of April 2018. 

 

Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

 

 Duly passed by the City Council this 6th day of May 2014. 

 
 
       __________________________ 
       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

22



Resolution 2014-027, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1  

 

City Council Meeting Date: May 6, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2014-027 Appointing Sally Robinson to the Sherwood 

Planning Commission  
 

 
Issue:  

Should the Council appoint Sally Robinson to the Sherwood Planning Commission? 

 

Background:  

Sally Robinson submitted an application and has requested to be appointed to the 

Planning Commission to fill a vacancy recently vacated by Michael Cary.  The review 

team of Jean Simson, Planning Commission Chair, Councilor Robyn Folsom, Council 

Liaison to the Commission, and Bill Middleton, Mayor all recommend Sally Robinson for 

appointment.  

 

Financials:  

There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-027 appointing 

Sally Robinson to the Sherwood Planning Commission. 

 

23



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-027 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-027 
 

APPOINTING SALLY ROBINSON TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, Planning Commissioner Michael Cary’s current term expired in April 2014 
which created a vacancy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City posted a request for applications on the City website, and 
announced the vacancy before both the Planning Commission and the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sally Robinson applied and was interviewed by Councilor Liaison Robyn 
Folsom, Planning Commission Chair, Jean Simson, and Planning Manager Brad Kilby; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Mayor Bill Middleton, Councilor Robyn Folsom, City Council Liaison to the 
Planning Commission and Jean Simson, Planning Commission Chair have considered 
her request and recommend Sally Robinson’s appointment to a four-year term. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Sally Robinson to a four-year 

term expiring at the end of April, 2018. 
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 6th day of May 2014. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

24



Resolution 2014-028, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: May 6, 2014 

 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 

 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 

Through: Chris Crean, City Attorney and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager  

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-028, Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Washington County regarding a 

Joint Industrial Site Readiness and Planning Grant benefiting Sherwood’s 

Tonquin Employment Area 

 

 

Issue: 

Shall the Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a MOU with Washington County 

outlining the responsibility and authority to administer Metro Community Planning and 

Development Grant (CPDG), also referred to as Construction Excise Tax (CET), funds? 

 

Background: 

The City of Sherwood and Washington County both applied for CPDG funds from Metro for 

projects related to industrial development: 

 Sherwood proposed preparing a detailed marketing and implementation study for the 

Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) and requested $143,955, 

 Washington County proposed preparing detailed site assessments of fifteen large industrial 

sites throughout the county, including one located in the TEA. The Washington County 

grant request was for $227,500. 

 

Metro identified that both grant applications sought to conduct industrial readiness site 

assessments and planning, and decided to fund a combined project. They required that the two 

projects and associated scope of work be combined and conditionally funded the combined effort 

in the amount of $255,000.   

 

City of Sherwood and Washington County staff combined the two separate project’s scopes of 

work as required. The major outcomes of the combined scope of work will: 

 Assess 15 industrial sites throughout Washington County, including one property in the 

TEA, to identify site constraints and mitigation costs and develop an industry focus and 

draft development concept for each site 

 Develop a marketing prospectus and implementation strategy for Sherwood’s TEA 

 

In order to most efficiently combine the two projects, it is necessary that the work be managed by 

one entity rather than both Sherwood and the County separately contracting and managing 

elements of the combined project. It was determined that the County was best equipped to act as 

overall project manager and that they would handle payments to the consultant and delivery of 

25



Resolution 2014-028, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

milestones to Metro to meet grant requirements. However, because the scope includes payments 

to the City of Sherwood to cover staff time anticipated to be spent on the project above and beyond 

our in-kind match, a MOU between the County and City of Sherwood is necessary to outline the 

expectations, responsibilities and financial agreements for both parties. A copy of the MOU is 

included as Exhibit 1 to the attached resolution and will ultimately be an attachment to a three party 

intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the City of Sherwood, Washington County and Metro 

prior to kicking off the project and receiving grant funds.  

 

Signing the MOU acknowledges that the City of Sherwood will receive $25,446 to support a portion 

of staff time working on the project and that staff will support the project over the course of the 

yearlong planning effort. An IGA will be brought before City Council at a later date formalizing our 

role and commitment to the project. 

 

Financial Impacts: 

The City would receive $25,446 from Washington County as disbursement of our share of grant 

funds. This was identified as revenue in the proposed FY 14-15 budget. Staff and resources 

necessary to accomplish this project were included in the proposed FY14-15 budget. In addition, 

the City committed to contribute $2,000 as a financial match in the initial site assessment phase. 

This was anticipated in the current budget and will be funded upon signing of the IGA with Metro 

and Washington County.   

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-028 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a MOU with Washington County regarding the combined scoped of work and 

project management of the Community Development Planning Grant for the Industrial site 

readiness and planning grant. 

 

26



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-028 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (2 pgs) 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-028 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY REGARDING A JOINT INDUSTRIAL 

SITE READINESS AND PLANNING GRANT BENEFITING SHERWOOD’S TONQUIN 

EMPLOYMENT AREA 

 

WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood each applied for separate Community 

Planning and Development Grants from Metro to conduct industrial site assessments and planning; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, Metro identified that combining the two grants would allow for efficiencies while also 

generally achieving the desired work products of both grants; and 

 

WHEREAS, Metro awarded Washington County and the City of Sherwood the requested grants on 

the condition that they be combined and reduced the amount funded from $371,455 as requested 

to the funded amount of $255,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County and the City have collaboratively created a combined scope of work and 

budget that can be accomplished with the funds available and generally achieves the scope 

originally conceived for the two separate project proposals; and  

 

WHEREAS, part of the combined scope of work identified the need to have one entity responsible 

for overall project management and it was determined that the County was the best suited to 

perform that duty; and 

 

WHEREAS, an agreement is needed to document Washington County and City of Sherwood’s 

mutual understanding and agreement regarding scope of work, responsibility, staff support 

required and management and distribution of funds and the draft MOU included as Exhibit 1 

achieves this purpose. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign the MOU, 

attached as Exhibit 1. 

 

Section 2.    This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

 

27



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-028 
May 6, 2014 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (2 pgs) 

 

Duly passed by the City Council this 6th day of May 2014.  

 

 

             

        Bill Middleton, Mayor 

 

 

 

Attest:         

 

 

        

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   

28



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between 

The Washington County Dept. of Land Use and Transportation 

Washington County, Oregon 

And 

The City of Sherwood Community Development Department 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 

 

 

This memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into as of the ___ day of __________, 

2014 between Washington County Department of Land Use and Transportation (“DLUT”) 

Washington County, Oregon (the “County”) and the City of Sherwood Community Development 

Department, Sherwood, Oregon (the “City”). The purposes of this MOU are to:  

 

A. Assign to the County the responsibility and authority to administer the grant funding received 

from Metro through the Community Planning and Development Grant program.  

B. Set forth the scope of work for both agencies under the grant prior to obtaining funding. 

 

Recitals:  

1. Both the County and the City applied for Community Planning and Development Grants 

from Metro to conduct industrial site assessments and planning. Washington County 

proposed preparing detailed site assessments of fifteen large industrial sites throughout 

the county. Sherwood proposed preparing a detailed marketing and implementation study 

for the Tonquin Employment Area site.  

2. Metro identified that both grant applications sought to conduct industrial readiness site 

assessments and planning, so therefore instructed the County and the City to combine 

their grant applications, and conditionally funded the combined effort in the amount of 

$255,000.  

3. The County and the City have collaboratively created a combined scope of work and 

budget for a project titled Industrial Site Assessments and Planning.  

4. In order to most efficiently combine the two grant proposals, the combined scope of work 

gives Washington County primary project management responsibility.  

5. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will be included as an attachment to the 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) signed with Metro for the grant.  

 

Terms:  

Based on the various recitals, the Washington County DLUT and City of Sherwood Community 

Development Department understand and agree to the following terms:  

 

1. The County and the City will enter into a joint IGA with Metro for the grant which will 

include an “Exhibit A” documenting the scope of work and milestones   

2. The County will receive grant funding from Metro according to the milestones schedule 

established in Exhibit A to the IGA. 

3. The County will fund the City in the total amount of $25,446 from the grant in order to 

support project work for Sherwood’s planning site. Funds will be released according to the 

milestones schedule established in Exhibit A to the IGA.  

Resolution 2014-028, Exhibit 1 

May 6, 2014, Page 1 of 2
29



MOU – Washington County and City of Sherwood 

April 18, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

4. The City will fund $2,000 to the County as a financial match for the site assessment phase of 

the project.  

5. The County will contract with the project consultant(s) directly. 

6. The County will submit project deliverables to Metro. 

7. Sherwood will provide technical support to project consultant in preparing the detailed 

marketing and implementation study for the Tonquin Employment Area and present final 

result to the Sherwood City Council.   

 

Based upon the foregoing, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the dates below written. 

 

  

 

WASHINGTON COUNTY:  

 

By: Andrew Singelakis  

 

       

 

DLUT Director 

Date:  

 

 

Approved:  

 

By: Robert (Bob) Davis 

 

 

 

County Administrator 

Date:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SHERWOOD:  

 

By: Julia Hajduk  

 

 

 

Community Development Director 

Date:  

 

 

Approved:  

 

By: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM 

 

 

 

City Manager 

Date:  

 

 

Resolution 2014-028, Exhibit 1 

May 6, 2014, Page 2 of 2
30



 

Resolution 2014-029, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: May 6, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Tom Pessemier, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-029, Authorizing the City Manager to sign the 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOU) between the City of Sherwood and 
the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) 

 

 

Issue:  

Should the City Manager be given the authority to sign the Memorandum of Agreement 

(MOU) for AFSCME? 

 

Background:  

In late 2013, AFSCME determined that they desired to roll over the existing agreement for 

an additional year with allowances for Cost of Living Adjustments. 

 

Financials:   

Cost of living increases for all employees in the respective collective bargaining units are 

included in the City Manager’s proposed budget for FY2014-15.   

 

Recommendation:  

Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-029 authorizing the 

City Manager to execute the Memorandum of Agreement with AFSCME. 

31



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-029 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (3 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-029 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOU) 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY 

AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFSCME) 

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing body of the City of Sherwood, Oregon, has been presented 

with information about the Memorandum of Agreement between the City of Sherwood and AFSCME; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood and AFSCME members have agreed to roll over the current 

AFSCME Contract as noted in the attached Memorandum of Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, AFSCME ratified the tentative agreement in April of 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the agreement will remain tentative until ratified by the Sherwood City Council and will be 

effective upon execution and remain in effect through June 30, 2015; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  This agreement is approved and ratified by the Sherwood City Council and is approved 

for adoption. The Memorandum of Agreement is attached as “Exhibit A”. 

 

Section 2:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the memorandum of agreement 

between the City of Sherwood and AFSCME. 

 

Section 3:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

 

 Duly passed by the City Council this 6th day of May 2014. 

 

 

        _________________________ 

        Bill Middleton, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________  

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

32



Resolution 2014-029, Exhibit A 

May 6, 2014, Page 1 of 3
33



Resolution 2014-029, Exhibit A 

May 6, 2014, Page 2 of 3
34



Resolution 2014-029, Exhibit A 

May 6, 2014, Page 3 of 3
35



Resolution 2014-030, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 4 

City Council Meeting Date: May 6, 2014 

 

Agenda Item: New Business 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 

through: Tom Pessemier, Assistant City Manager and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-030 directing staff to provide notice and include in the Fee 

Schedule for FY14-15 a 50% reduction to the Sherwood Transportation System 

Development Charge (SDC) 

 

 

Issue: 

Should City Council adopt Resolution 2014-030 making clear the Council’s intent and providing 

direction to staff to take action to implement a 50% reduction in the Sherwood Transportation System 

Development Charge (SDC)? 

 

Background: 

Establishment of the SDC to fund necessary transportation improvements 

The City adopted a local Transportation SDC in 2006 after completion of the 2005 Transportation 

System Plan (TSP) update.  At that time, the TSP identified numerous transportation needs that 

existing funding sources could not adequately fund.  One of the main funding sources at the time was 

the County Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) which only funded a small percentage of actual transportation 

needs.  The Sherwood Transportation SDC was evaluated and adopted to make up the difference 

between Sherwood’s total transportation needs and the County TIF.   

 

Changes since the SDC was established 

Shortly after the City of Sherwood adopted the Transportation SDC, the City Council adopted a 25% 

discount.  This discount was adopted, in part, in response to feedback received from the business 

community.   

 

In 2008, Washington County voters approved Measure 34-164 which replaced the TIF with the 

Transportation Development Tax (TDT).  The TDT increased the TIF rates and once fully phased in, 

would more than double the rates compared to the TIF.  The TDT is currently phased in at a rate of 

75% and is expected to be increased to the full rate by 2016.  As the TDT has increased over time, 

the local transportation SDC could be re-evaluated to ensure that the rates charged are appropriate. 

 

Evaluation of SDC versus TDT 

The TDT, as did the TIF, caps the trips for certain uses.  While the TDT provides more revenue 

overall, because of the trip caps there are certain categories that are still not being fully funded when 

combining the Sherwood SDC and TDT.  Because there are 85 ITE code categories in the local SDC, 

staff conducted an initial evaluation by categorizing them into 5 general categories: 

 Residential 

 Institutional 

 Commercial 

36



Resolution 2014-030, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 

 Office 

 Industrial 

 

The table below shows the percent of costs covered by the TDT and the SDC.  As the table shows, all 

categories except commercial are more than contributing to the actual costs when factoring the TDT 

and SDC.   

 Percent of actual 
costs covered by 
TDT 

Percent of actual costs 
covered by SDC with 
current 25% discount 

Total percent of actual 
costs being paid for by 
TDT +SDC

1
 

Adjustment needed 
to SDC  to cover 
100% of costs 

Residential 81% 38% 119% -54% 

Institutional 53% 52% 105% -12% 

Commercial/retail 43% 50% 93% +6% 

Office 70% 44% 114% -32% 

Industrial 74% 41% 115% -37% 

 

Modifications needed 

It is clear from our analysis that at least in some categories, the SDC rates charged should be 

modified to ensure that we do not continue to collect more than is needed to cover the impacts of 

certain uses.  For commercial, while it may appear that the SDC should be raised, staff does not 

recommend it.  It is important to note that while it appears that certain uses are not fully contributing 

toward the cost of their impact, because of the TDT trip caps, the proportion required to be funded by 

the SDC to make up the difference is significant compared to uses where the trips are not capped.  

 

The table below illustrates 2 examples where the TDT trips are capped and the SDC rate is 

significantly higher even though the total fees assessed do not contribute to the full impact.  This is 

significant from an economic development standpoint when considering that the same use in any 

other jurisdiction in Washington County would only be required to pay the TDT rate. 

 

 Actual Cost 

of Impact 

TDT rate Current SDC (w/ 
25% reduction 

Sherwood current total 
(SDC+TDT) 

Hotel/Motel (cost per room) $9,489  $1,839 $5,846 $7,685 

Convenience market (24 

hour) (cost per 1000 

square feet) 

$104,124  $21,133 $63,871 $85,004 

 

While the actual difference varies greatly between the 85 ITE use codes, some of the greatest 

differences are also uses that Sherwood has identified that it would like, such as Hotel/Motel uses.  

The disparity between what a new users pays in Sherwood and what they would pay in other 

Washington County cities creates an economic disadvantage and affects a business’s decision to 

locate here.   

                                                 
1
 Note – Anything greater than 100% means we are collecting more than the actual impact; anything less indicates that 

we are collecting less than the actual impact on average in the general categories 

37



Resolution 2014-030, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Reduction of 50% recommended 

Based on previous work sessions with City Council and the analysis provided above, a 50% reduction 

across the board is recommended.  This reduction would ensure that no use is paying more than its 

share while helping to even the playing field for economic development.   

 

Effect of a 50% reduction on available funding 

To understand how a 50% reduction would affect available funds, staff looked at the SDC and TDT 

collected over the past 3 years.  The table below shows the SDC and TDT assessed between FY11-

12 and FY13-14 as well as what would have been assessed if the reduction were in place: 

 

SDC TDT Total SDC at 50% TDT Total Difference= 

$1.35 million $2.7 million $2.6 million $5.3 million2 $1.35 million $2.6 million $3.95 million 

 

For perspective, the $1.35 million difference between what was assessed and what would have been 

assessed if there was a 50% SDC reduction in place the last 3 years is about half of the estimated 

cost of constructing Langer Farms Parkway from Tualatin-Sherwood road to 99W.   

 

Staff has done a simple trend line assessment projecting the SDC assessed over the past 4 years into 

the next 3 years.  The trend line indicates that we could anticipate collecting $2.6 million in SDC and 

$1.9 million in TDT over the next 3 years.  A 50% reduction in the SDC would result in an estimated 

$1.3 million less being assessed over the next 3 years.   

 

Of course this is an estimate only and the actual amount assessed could be more or less depending 

on development.  It is also important to remember that while a 50% reduction would reduce the 

amount of funds available for capacity improvements, the City of Sherwood is in a better position than 

other Washington County cities relating to funds to complete these types of improvements.  In 

addition, the trend analysis and estimate does not factor increases to the TDT which are possible and 

could increase the TDT revenues by an additional 25%.  The reduction and loss in SDC revenue does 

not necessarily mean that projects would not get completed but it would take longer to raise the 

revenue to complete them. 

 

Commitment to Reevaluate  

The City of Sherwood TSP is in the process of being updated at this time and project lists and project 

costs are likely to change.  Once the TSP update is complete, the City will need to update the SDC 

methodology at which time new assessment and decisions will need to be made about whether to 

modify the SDC to cover gaps between the TDT and actual costs and to what extent. Because of all 

these variables and unknowns, it is recommended that the 50% reduction be limited to 3 years to 

ensure that the SDC methodology and assumptions are re-evaluated in a timely manner.  A limit on 

the reduction will demonstrate a commitment from City Council to re-evaluate the SDC methodology 

and assumptions after the TSP update is completed by establishing an end date for the SDC 

reduction.   

 

 

                                                 
2
 This is what was assessed not actually collected because of credits available 

38



Resolution 2014-030, Staff Report 
May 6, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 

Other Considerations 

If City Council approves this reduction as recommended, it would be assessed on building permits 

issued AFTER July 1, 2014.  A reduction will not impact projects that have received building permits 

prior to July 1, 2014, even if the fees were deferred.   

 

It should also be understood that there are projects that may have credits available as a result of 

dedicating right of way or making transportation improvements and because of the SDC reduction 

may find it more beneficial to have those credits transferred to TDT credits.  Staff is prepared to 

develop a process to transfer banked credits, if necessary.  However, because TDT credit calculations 

are more restrictive than SDC credits, a developer will not be able to transfer a dollar for dollar 

amount. 

 

Proposed Modifications 

Resolution 2014-030 implements the following modifications that are recommended by staff: 

 50% reduction in the Transportation SDC effective July 1, 2014 

 Reduction effective until July 1, 2017 unless SDC methodology update is completed sooner 

and Council action determines changes are needed 

 Direct staff to provide notice to potentially affected projects that have credits 

 Direct staff to develop a process and policy to allow for the transfer of SDC credits to TDT 

credits 

 

Financial Impacts: 

As noted, the reduction in Transportation SDC rates will result in less funds being assessed by the 

City of Sherwood for the local Transportation SDC.   

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests adoption of Resolution 2014-030 declaring the Council’s intent to reduce 

the Transportation System Development Charge by 50% for all uses effective July 1, 2014 through 

July 1, 2017 and directing staff to provide notice and take action as needed to implement the 

Council’s intent. 

 

39



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-030 
May 6, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2014-030 

 
A RESOLUTION REDUCING TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood approved and adopted the current methodology for its 
transportation system development charges and established an updated capital improvement plan on 
November 8, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution 2007-085 on November 6, 2007, enacting a 25% reduction 
of the Transportation System Development Charge (SDC) rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SDC methodology assumed additional revenues for transportation system project 
through the Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) and was calculated to ensure that development paid for 100% of 
the actual transportation impact uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TIF capped trips for certain uses resulting in greater local transportation SDC’s for 
certain uses than other uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of the uses where the trips were capped were uses that would benefit the local 
economy; and  
 
WHEREAS, the TIF was replaced by the Transportation Development Tax (TDT) in 2008 which 
increased the TIF rates resulting in a larger proportion of funds being contributed than anticipated 
when the SDC methodology was adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TDT also capped trips on certain uses, resulting in increased inconsistency in how 
much some uses were contributing towards the actual transportation impacts versus other uses when 
adding the local transportation SDC; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff has evaluated the general categories and found that some categories are 
contributing proportionally more towards the total transportation costs while other categories are not; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that even those uses that are not contributing their full 
share towards the total transportation costs are still paying more in Sherwood than would be required 
in any other community in Washington County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined there is an economic development benefit in being more 
consistent with what is being charged in other jurisdictions, while also ensuring that new development 
in Sherwood continues to contribute additional funds towards the transportation impacts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that, coupled with the additional revenues associated 
with the TDT, a 50% reduction in the SDC currently assessed would not significantly impact the ability 
to accomplish identified transportation projects; and 
 

40



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-030 
May 6, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that the City is in the process of updating the Transportation System Plan 
and is expected to have it adopted by July 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon adoption of the TSP update a new SDC methodology will be necessary to re-
calculate the funds needed to implement the TSP identified projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, a limited timeframe on the reduction makes clear the City Council’s intention to revisit the 
SDC methodology and fee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the staff and City Council have determined that 3 years is sufficient time to adopt the 
TSP and complete the work necessary to update the SDC methodology; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council recognizes that the reduction will affect existing projects where credits are 
available and there is not currently a clear process and policy to transfer SDC credits to TDT credits. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Transportation System Development Charge shall be charged at a rate of 

50% of the adopted Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Rate Schedule until July 1, 2017 unless 
such action is taken by Council to modify the SDC methodology and calculation 
sooner. 

 
Section 2. The City Manager or his designee is hereby directed to take such action as may be 

necessary to support this Resolution, including the preparation of a Revised Fee 
Schedule for City Council adoption. 

 
Section 3. The Community Development Director shall ensure that a clear process and policy for 

the transfer of SDC credits to TDT credits is in place.   
 
Section 4.  The Community Development Director is directed to provide notice to potentially 

affected projects. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 6th day of May 2014. 
 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

41



 

1  

 

SHERWOOD POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2014 UPDATE REPORT 

1st Quarter: January-February-March 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



 

2  

 

2014 Patrol Calls For Service & Activities 

Activity Highlights 2013 Totals Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2014 Totals 
Premise checks for 
security 

2,409 839     

Assistance provided to 
public 

1,848 591     

Suspicious Vehicles 668 149     
Subject Stops/contacts 360 44     
Suspicious 
Circumstances 

311 70     

Animal Complaints 239 42     
Alarms 203 54     
Juvenile Problems 348 64     
Thefts 323 73     
Suspicious Persons 171 27     
Welfare Checks-People 229 48     
Harassment 146 53     
Noise Complaints 164 24     
Incomplete 911 calls 96 41     
Warrant Service 98 23     
Fraud 95 16     
Domestic Disturbance 148 23     
Criminal Mischief 197 33     
Drug Complaints 67 16     
Burglaries 50 8     
Suicide Threats 22 4     
Suicide Attempts 4 4     
Mental Intervention 15 1     
Patrol Case Follow-Up 1,964 740     
Robberies 6 0     
Assaults 29 3     
Disturbances 139 26     
Assist Fire/Other PD 251 62     
Sex Offenses 12 4     
Missing Persons 13 2     
Arson 1 1     

 

43



 

3  

 

 
Source PSWeb2 

 

 
Source PSWeb2 

 

374 377 405

2,189

1,577

2,019

2,563

1,954

2,424

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

January 2014 February 2014 March 2014

1st Quarter Activity Totals

Public Demand Officer Initiated Total Activities

5,741 6,276

1,156

12,246

19,693

5,785

17,987

25,969

6,941

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2012 2013 2014-YTD

Annual Total Activities

Public Demand Officer Initiated Total Activities

44



 

4  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

117
128 130

117 119 124

15 15
10

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

January 2014 February 2014 March 2014

1st Quarter Workload

Reports New Cases Jail Bookings

214

187

40

0

50

100

150

200

250

2012 2013 2014-YTD

Annual Jail Bookings

Jail Bookings

45



 

5  

 

2014 Traffic Safety 
Traffic Safety 
Call/Activity 

2013 Totals Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2014 Totals 

Traffic Crashes 332 64     
Traffic Stops-
Street 

4,519 810     

Citations-Street 2,058 325     
PRL Violations 8,091 2,510     
PRL Citations 4,475 1,358     
Extra Patrols 6,808 1,979     
Parking/City 
Ordinance 
Complaints 

323 105     

Motorist Assists 210 60     
Hazards 213 68     
Att. to Locate 
Driver (DUII-Reckless) 

369 106     

Driving Under the 
Influence 

102 11     

Traffic Complaints 
& Directed Patrols 

1,860 816     

 

 
 

810

325

64

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1st Quarter Traffic Safety Totals

Traffic Stops Citations Crashes

46



 

6  

 

 
 

 
 
 

5,257

4,519

810

1,910 2,058

325372 332
64

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

2012 2013 2014-YTD

Annual Traffic Safety Totals

Traffic Stops Citations Crashes

865
809

836

469
422

467

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

January 2014 February 2014 March 2014

PRLP-1st Quarter Violation & Citation Totals

Violations Citations

47



 

7  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

865
809 836

469
422

467

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

PRLP-2014 Violation & Citation Totals

Violations Citations

17,040

9,507

8,091

2,510

8,664

4,091 4,475

1,358
0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

2011 2012 2013 2014-YTD

PRLP 4-Year View

Violations Citations

48



 

8  

 

K-9 Update 
 

 
 

 
 
 

4

1 1

10

4

1

Area Search Article Search Fleeing Criminal Narcotics Search-
Car

Building Search Narcotics Search-
Area

1st Quarter Uses

15

4

2

2

1st Quarter Deployments by Agency

Sherwood PD WCSO Tigard PD Beaverton PD

49


	01 City Council Packet Cover
	02  City Council Agenda 05.06.14
	02.1  04.15.14  City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	03  Resolution 2014-026 Reappoint Russell Griffin to Plan Comm-STAFF REPORT
	04  Resolution 2014-026 Reappoint Russell Griffin to Plan Comm-DRAFT
	05  Resolution 2014-027  Appoint Sally Robinson to Plan Comm-STAFF REPORT
	05.1  Resolution 2014-027 Appoint Sally Robinson to Plan Comm-DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2014-028 Authorize MOU with WACO for CPDG funds-STAFF REPORT
	07  Resolution 2014-028 Authorize MOU with WACO for CPDG funds-DRAFT
	08  Resolution 2014-028 Authorize MOU with WACO for CPDG funds EXH 1
	09  Resolution 2014-029 Authorize AFSCME Memo of Agreement-STAFF REPORT
	10  Resolution 2014-029 Authorize AFSCME Memo of Agreement-DRAFT
	11  Resolution 2014-029 Authorize AFSCME Memo of Agreement-EXH A
	12  Resolution 2014-030 Transportation SDC reduction-STAFF REPORT 05.06.14
	13  Resolution 2014-030 Transportation SDC reduction-DRAFT 05.06.14
	14  Police Report 1st Quarter 2014



